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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Manahawkin Baptist Church, or the Free Church of Manahawkin

ag it was known in historic times, is a wood frame building in goed to
" very‘good condition.. It is &pproximately LO'x60'.

The physical appearance of the building as it stands today is
much the same size as it originally was when built. On February 3, 186h,
a committee was appointed to start remodiling or rebuilding the exist- 1™
ing structure. The original record book shows that the walls were
weakening and the church as it stands today has the original church

_within it (floors under floors; walls within walls). The rebuilt
Church was rededicated 2nd. week of July 1867,

The date of the deed is August 2L, 17%6 and from the deed it
appears the Church was already built. From the best information a-
vailable this church built prior to 1758 was the first church erected
in what was then Lower Mommouth Coufity (Ocean County was not formed
until a laber date).

In later years a snall addition was built on the back to house
the baptismal pool and the spire, or steeple, was lowered to detract
lightning after same was hit, The sides are now painted white instead
of weathered,

The foundation has been examined and is sound. It is built of
brick and mortar.

The roof was originally native cedar wood shingles, It has been
replaced with asphalt shingles. It is again in need of a new roof and
it is the hope of the Historical Society to restore it with native
cedar shingles as.close to the original as possible.

The interior is in very good conditiori., Original wide floor boards
are in:)act, a8 are the wooden pews and pulpit. On the underfloor
(original) there are blood stains from the &oldiers of the Revolution=-
ary War. Walls and ceiling are sound only needing a fresh coat of
paint. The kerosene chandeliers of the 186k rebmilding are stored in
the attic, and will be rehung.

Windows are high and narrow with 75% of the original panes in
in¥;act. The balance, due to breakage, have been replaced with new
glasss. )

There is a vestibule with a winding stairway to a second floor
gallery (this is mermtioned under December lL, 1875 entry in the origi-
nal record book) (showing it was there at that time) which overlooks
the full sanctury. This, too, is in sound condition.

Behind the raised pulpit area, the baptismal pool is located
covered with removalbe floor boards and behind t hat are two small
rooms used in the past as Sunday School rooms.

The bell in the steeple is the original church bell, cast in
England, NOTE: Entries in the original record book read as follows:
February 3, 186L, "...a committed was appointed for the purpose of re-
modeling our church". On April 8, 186k "...a building committee was
appointed to make a start in rebuilding our church®,

Other entries show t hat in 1863 they worked on mending the roof
and the fence: September 2, 1873 a committee was formed to repair the
spire; October 2, 1875 partitions were put in the gallery and new coal
stoves installed; April 29, 1876 plans were made for a new front fence

“w« and permiseion was refused to use thefront yard for burial purposesd.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

From all information obtainable this Church was the fiFEt“Ebuse of
worship erected in the County. A deed for the land on which it was erected
is dated August 24, 1758 and from the deed it sppears the Church was al-
ready built. The lot is described as "Beginning at a stake 265 links north-
west from the meeting house",

Manahawkin at that time was in ‘the iower part of Mommouth County. As
the early settlers found it hard to get to Shrewsbury for the town meetings,
a petition was drawn up from "The South Eastern Inhabitants of Shrewsbury
for a Separate Township"., This was circulated and presermted to Governor
Belcher and on March 3, 1749 a grant was received from King George II est-
‘ablishing the Township of Stafford. Stafford Township was formed even
before this area became Ccean County.

T This Church was orginally known as "The Free Church of Manahawkin"
providing a pulpit for circuit riders of any denomination. In 1770 Captain
Thomas Webb visited the village, preached and formed or organized the
Baptist Society with nine members.

During the earlier years this church was the only school for the
children in Stafford Towhship and the only materials available for their
teaching was the Scripture.

During the Rewolutionary War, in the "skirmish at Manahawkin®, the
military and other wounded were treated and cared for in the Chnrch. The
blood stains are still visible on the under-floor boards. Soldiers from
the Rewvolution are buried in the surrounding churchyard. (NOTE: The
churchyard also contains the remains of all shipwreck victims from the
disasters off the Coast of what is now Long Beach Island and many years
ago t?e State of New Jersey placed a monument to all these unknown vic-
tims,

A portion of the minutes in the original record book under the entry
of Tuesday Fvening, September S, 1876 reads as follows: "The corporate
name was adopted by a majority of the members present. The words to wit
the Baptist Church of Manshawkin, New Jersey."

Congressional Representation
Harrison A. Williams - U.S. Senator
Clifford P. Case - U.S, Senator
Edwin Forsythe - Congressman (6th Congretional Distrig

t)
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law

89-665), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set

forth by the National Park Service. The récommended
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Date

May 1, 1972

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

Chief, Office of Archeology and Hjs}oric Preservation

43/73
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